ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 


I. THE LOWER COURT ERRED BY ADMITTING STATEMENTS, TESTIMONIAL IN 
NATURE, OF THE VICTIM IN VIOLATION OF CRAWFORD V. WASHINTON. THE 
LOWER COURT ALSO COMMITTED ERROR BY ADMITTING OTHER HEARSAY 
STATEMENTS OF VICTIM UNDER THE CATCH-ALL PROVISION OF THE 
HEARSAY RULES WITHOUT A FINDING OF TRUSTWORTHINESS. 

II. THE LOWER COURT COMMITTED ERROR BY ADMITTING THE PORTION OF 
THE "THIRD STATEMENT" OF APPELLANT TO POLICE AFTER HER STATUS 
CHANGED FROM NON-CUSTODIAL TO CUSTODIAL AND SHE WAS GIVEN NO 
FURTHER MIRANDA WARNINGS. 

III. THE LOWER COURT ERRED IN REFUSING INSTRUCTIONS BASED ON STATE 
V. HARDEN BECAUSE IT REQUIRED A SHOWING OF ACTUAL PHYSICAL ABUSE 
AND THAT EMOTIONAL ABUSE WAS NOT SUFFICIENT. 

IV. THE LOWER COURT COMMITTED ERROR IN REFUSING TO GIVE A GOOD 
CHARACTER INSTRUCTION AS PROFERED BY THE APPELLANT, WHEN NO 
INSTRUCTION ON CHARACTER WAS GIVEIN, GOOD CHARACTER WAS 
UNCONTESTED AND INTREGAL TO APPELLANT'S CASE. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

A. Introduction. Appellant is Julia Surbaugh, a college educated woman of a 

peaceful, non-violent character, a good mother and community volunteer. The victim 

was her husband, Michael Surbaugh, who for a year prior to his death dated, outside 

the marriage, an admitted methamphetamine ("meth") addict. He was twice arrested 

for drug possession and forced to resign his position as a school teacher. Appellant 

asserted at trial that after a night of argument, victim confronted her with his pistol, that 

she took the pistol from him, and shot him twice in the face as he approached her. The 

victim then took the pistol, held it to his head and shot himself. The State contended 

that Appellant shot the victim in the head while he was asleep. Appellant complains of 
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several key rulings, which she contends, were in error and led to her to her being 

wrongly convicted of first degree murder without a recommendation for mercy. 

B. Good Character. Julia Surbaugh's friends and neighbors testified she was a 

good neighbor and had a peaceful manner. (Vol. II, JT 215 and 266). The sheriff of 

Webster County, Jerry Hamrick, testified that Appellant was non-violent and safe. 

After arresting her on August 12, 2009, he felt no need to handcuff her. Prior to 

transporting Appellant to jail, he and Julia Surbaugh attended a birthday party for an 

employee of the Sheriff's office. (Vol. II, JT 339). 

Julia Surbaugh had a good reputation in the community of Webster Springs. 

(Vol. II, JT 266). She was a good mother to her two young sons, Gavin and Rigel. 

(Vol. II, JT 269 and 381). Appellant supported victim despite his affair by allowing him 

to stay in the marital home (Vol. II, JT 214) and paid his fine for drug possession. (Vol. 

II, JT 379). 

Appellant spent the weekend prior to the shooting incident of August 6,2009, 

organizing and managing the "Back to School Bash" (Vol. II, JT 753), an event that gives 

out school supplies to impoverished children. (Vol. II, JT 753 to 754). 

Despite the uncontested evidence concerning good character, the lower court 

refused a "good character" instruction. (Vol. II, JT 666 and 885 to 880). 

C. Shots Fired. A 911 call was received at approximately 7:30 am, on August 6, 

2009, from the Surbaugh residence. (Vol. I, AR 84, 139, and, Vol. II, JT 200). It was 

Appellant stating that her husband was trying to shoot himself (Vol. I, AR 139), and 
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later, that he had been shot. (Vol. I, AR 140). 

Upon hearing a 911 call on the scanner and calling one another, two neighbors 

ran to the Surbaugh residence. (Vol. II, JT 222 and 260 to 261). Neighbor Deb White 

stayed with victim in the front of the Surbaugh residence (Vol. II, JT 222) while neighbor 

Ann Wilson attended to Appellant inside the house. (Vol. II, JT 261 to 262). 

Despite having suffered three gunshot wounds to the head, victim was able to 

ambulate (Vol. II, JT 222) and speak. (Vol. II, JT 223 to 224). His speech was very slow 

(Vol. II, JT 234) and he appeared in a zombie-like state. (Vol. II, JT 235). While waiting 

for emergency personnel he called his girlfriend, Janet Morton, on his cell phone and 

told her he would be "running a little late." (Vol. I, 150, and, Vol. II, JT 226 to 227). 

Victim made various statements to police and emergency medical responders 

prior to being taken to hospital. The following is a list of statements made by victim in 

chronological order: 

1. "The gun didn't go off." (Vol. I, AR 149). 2. "Give me my pants." (Vol. I, AR 149). 

3. Request to Deb White for the following: glasses, wallet, t-shirt; shorts, Copenhagen 

and two cell phones (did not want the first one offered). (Vol. II, JT 236 to 237). 4. "The 

boys don't need to see this." (Vol. II, 15 APR 26). 5. "What happened?" (Vol. II, JT 227) 

6. "Was I shot or just hit in the head?" (Vol. It JT 227). 7. "I'll be running a little late 

someone decided to shoot me in the fucking head. Urn, okay, I'll just need to go to the 

hospital so I'll try to call you back later. Talk to you later bye." (Cell phone call to 

girlfriend.) (Vol. I, AR 150, and Vol. II, JT 226 to 227). 8. "Twice." (Response by victim 
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to question from Deputy Vandevender concerning how many times he had been shot.) 

(Vol. II, 15 APR 29, 42; JT 228,241 to 242). 9. "The bitch shot me" and "My wife shot 

me." (Statement or statements heard by various people.) (Vol. II, 15 ARP 14 to 15, 22, 29, 

51,6070; JT 228, 240, 270, 329,405, 456). 10. "How am I doing?" (Vol. II, JT 300) 11."1 

didn't, sh~ did." (In response to question what did you shoot yourself with?) (Vol. II, 

JT 297). 12. Victim was concerned about wife's safety and requests EMT, Dan Moran, to 

check on her. (Vol. II, JT 297,301). 13. Speaks to Nurse, Sarah Wolverton about wanting 

to go fishing and camping after he gets out of hospital. (Vol. II, JT). 14. Asks Sarah 

Wolverton if he is going to die. (Vol. II, JT 306). 15. Victim asks Sarah Wolverton what 

happened to him. (Vol. II, JT 307). 16. Victim tells Sarah Wolverton he was asleep and 

felt "he had been hit in the head with a baseball bat." (Vol. II, JT 306). 17. Dr. Jamie 

Miller relates that victim reported that he was lying in bed asleep and he got hit with a 

baseball bat. Kind of stunned, felt like he got hit again, at that point he took off through 

the house. (Vol. II, JT 301). 18. Victim asks Dr. Miller if he could speak with a police 

officer and tell his story, tell them what happened. (Vol. II, JT 310). 19. "I'm not crazy. I 

didn't do this. The bitch shot me." (Vol. II, JT 356). 20. Victim is heard by Deputy 

Vandevender to ask, "how bad he actually was, if the bullet had hit his brain, wanted to 

know if he was going be (sic) okay because he was wanting to go on a camping and 

fishing trip the following day." (Vol. II, 15 APR 113). 

These various statements in the context of accurate information were wrong, 

somewhat confused and/or incomplete. For example, the statement listed in number 
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17, states that victim "took off through the house." In fact the evidence at trial clearly 

showed that victim went to the bathroom (Vol. II, JT 302), washed up (Vol. II, JT 258), 

and went out the front door dropping the gun in the laundry basket. (Vol. II, JT 625). . 

The gun obviously did go off (statement number 1) and he was shot three times and not 

twice (statement number 8). 

D. Resolution a/Conflicting Statements a/Victim. The numerous and conflicting 

statements, as well as the condition of victim, led police to travel to the hospital to take 

a statement from the victim concerning what happened. (Vol. II, JT 406 to 407). Dr. 

Jamie Miller testified at trial that by the time victim was in the hospital he was calm and 

his normal self. (Vol. II, JT 314). Victim wanted to give his statement to the police. (Vol. 

II, JT 310). Police entered victim's room to take a statement from him. (Vol. II, JT 310). 

Thereafter police took what Appellant contends is a testimonial statement from the 

victim concerning what had happened. (Vol. I, AR 151 and, Vol. II, JT 407 to 409). The 

recorded statement was played for the jury at trial over objection. (Vol. II, JT 407 to 409). 

The following is the pertinent portion of the transcription aid also given to the jury: 

DV: (Deputy Vandevender): Okay what happened this morning do you 

know? 

MS: (Michael Surbaugh): I was sound asleep, I felt like somebody hit me up 

beside the head with a baseball bat. 

DV: Who, Who do you think done it? 

MS: _happened again. 

DV: Who do you think done it: 

MS: I don't know. 

DV: Don't know? You know where the gun was at or anything? Do you 

know where the gun was at? 

MS: Yeah, I took it away from Julia. 
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DV: So you think Julia done this? 

MS: I don't know. 

DV: Okay where was you at whenever you got shot? 

MS: Laying (sic) in bed asleep. 

DV: In your bedroom? 

MS: Yes sir. 


DV: Alright. So you think it was twice, two times is all you know you got 

hit? 

MS: That's what it felt like. 


(Vol. I, AR 151). 

E. Three Statements from Appellant. The police took three statements from 

Appellant concerning what happened. The first statement was taken on August 6,2009, 

at approximately 9:30am. (Vol. I, AR 84). The second statement was taken several days 

later on August 11,2009. (Vol. I, AR 155). And a third statement was taken on August 

12,2009. (Vol. I, AR 187). A part of the third statement was objected to on the basis that 

Appellant was told she was not under arrest and was free to leave. (Vol. I, AR 12). In 

fact, a State Police Officer arrived during the interview with a complaint and warrant 

for her arrest. (Vol. I, AR 90,92, Vol. II, 15 APR 120). Further, during the third 

statement, Appellant felt uncomfortable and stated several times that she needed a 

lawyer. (Vol. I, AR 189 to 190, 192). Nevertheless, questioning continued and the lower 

court admitted the statement. (Vol. I, AR 90, 96 and 190). 

F. Resolution of Conflicting Statements of Appellant. At trial Appellant admitted 

lying in her first two statements. (Vol. II, JT 745). She explained that she did this 

because she did not want her sons to know that she had shot their father. (Vol. II, JT 

746). In the first two statements Appellant had told police that victim had shot himself 
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in the face when she deflected the gun away. (Vol. I, 154, 156). At trial Julia Surbaugh 

testified that after being threatened by the victim (Vol. II, JT 779), she took the gun away 

from him. (Vol. II, JT 779 to 780). As he came after her, she fired two shots before he 

was able to take the gun back (Vol. II, JT 781 to 782). These were the two shots that 

entered victims face below the left eye. (Vol. II, JT 783). At this point Appellant 

thought her husband was going to kill her and she covered her eyes. (Vol. II, JT 784). 

Michael Surbaugh stated, "You're not going to get me for this, bitch." (Vol. II, JT 784). 

Appellant heard a shot but did not feel any pain. (Vol. II, JT 784). She looked up and 

the victim said: "Why am I not dead?" (Vol. II, JT 784). Later, victim stated as he was 

going out the front door: "The gun didn't go off Julie." (Vol. 1, AR 149). 

The State's theory of the case relied on victim's statement to Deputy 

Vandevender that he (victim) was asleep, felt as though he were hit in the head with a 

baseball bat and that he took the gun away from his wife Julia. 

G. Resolution ofConflicting Forensic Evidence. Dr. Hamada Mahmoud, Deputy 

Chief Medical Examiner, testified for the State as a forensic pathologist. (Vol. II, JT 515). 

He did not give an opinion as to which shot was fired first, second or third. (Vol. II, JT 

552). He also did not give an opinion as to victim's position (upright or lying down) at 

the time of the near contact wound to the right side of the head. Nor did he give any 

opinion concerning blood spatter. Dr. Mahmoud did give an opinion that victim died 

of an air embolism from one of the shots to the face (Vol. II, JT 536,570 to 572), and that 

the near contact wound to the right side of the head was, based on his experience, not 
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likely to have been self-inflicted because of its location near the ear. Dr. Mahmoud 

states: 

... 99 percent of cases, gunshot wounds to the head, actually maybe 99.99, it's 
right, in the right temple here. When someone tries to shoot themselves, you put 
the gun here and shot them self (sic) here. 

(Vol. II, JT 532). 

Dr. Daniel Spitz testified on behalf of the Appellant. (VoL It JT 673). He is a 

nationally recognized expert. (Vol. It JT 675 to 676). Dr. Spitz testified that victim was 

in an upright position when he was shot in the side of the head at near contact range. 

(Vol. II, JT 686 to 687). This was based upon blood spatter evidence. Dr. Spitz testified: 

... [B]lood spatter evidence is very important. It indicates that Mr. 
Surbaugh, especially when he sustained the gunshot wound to the right 
side of the head, which is the near-contact range wound that he was in a 
relative upright position. And then as a result of that wound there was 
blood spattered which stuck the under surface of the wooden shelt which is 
above the head of bed, and is also indicative of him being in an upright 
position because here's blood spattered on the ceiling above the bed. 
(Vol. It JT 687). 

Dr. Spitz opined that the contact shot to the head was self-inflicted because it 

would be unlikely that someone would be able to shoot victim without resistance if he 

were in an upright position or if two other shots had already been fired. (VoL II, JT 688, 

716). Dr. Spitz also testified that there were four locations that comprise the majority of 

suicidal shots (temple, heart, forehead and mouth, with the temple being the most 

frequent). The Doctor went on to state: 

... There are suicidal gunshot wounds that involve the undersurface of the 
chin. There are suicidal gunshot wounds that involve the ear. There are 
suicidal gunshot wounds that involve the chest, and abdomen. So while 
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those are the most common, as listed there [referring to the four locations of 
temple, heart, forehead and mouth], that is not meant to be ... the only 
locations. 

(Vol. II, JT 715). 

Another significant conflict in the forensic evidence involved the expert's 

opinion on the "mechanism of death." (Vol. II, JT 688 to 689). Dr. Mahmoud testified 

that the victim died as a result of an air embolism from a gunshot to the face. (Vol. II, 

JT 536). Dr. Spitz testified that the victim died as a result of the progressive injury that 

resulted from seizure related to the near contact gunshot wound to the side of the head. 

(Vol. II, JT 680). Dr. Spitz testified that death from an air embolism is extremely rare 

(Vol. II, JT 694) and that Dr. Mahmoud's opinion was without any basis in scientific fact. 

(Vol. II, JT 692 to 694). It was also noted that Dr. Mahmoud failed to perform 

examinations that would have established an air embolism (Vol. II, JT 570 to 572) or 

seizure related to the near contact gunshot wound to the side of the head. (Vol. II, JT 

707). (Diagnosis by looking for hemorrhage in the cortex.) 

It is important to note the credentials of the conflicting experts. Dr. Daniel Spitz 

is a board certified forensic pathologist (Vol. II, JT 675 to 676 ), he is an editor and 

contributor to the accepted (Vol. II, JT 546 ) authoritative treatise: Spitz and Fisher's 

Medicolegal Investigation ofDeath, Guidelines for the Application ofPathology to Crime 

Investigation, 4th Edition, Spitz WU (Editor) (Thomas Publishing Ltd., 2006). (Vol. II, 

JT 695), and is an assistant professor of forensic pathology at Wayne State University 

School of Medicine. (Vol. II, JT 676). Dr. Mahmoud is board eligible to take his 

9 



anatomic pathology exam (Vol. II, JT 573) but has failed to pass said exam in three 

attempts. (Vol. II, JT 575). Dr. Mahmoud must pass anatomic pathology and then 

clinical pathology to be eligible to take his forensic pathology exam and become board 

certified as a forensic pathologist. (Vol. II, JT 573 to 574). 

H. Victim's Downward Spiral. 1. Affair with Meth Addict. The victim, Michael 

Surbaugh, began an affair with another school teacher, Janet Morton, in July, 2008. (Vol. 

II, JT 359). Janet Morton testified at trial that she was a methamphetamine or meth 

addict and snorted"crank" five days a week for three to four years. (Vol. II, JT 369 to 

370). She admitted this addiction through July 25, 2009 (Vol. II, JT 367) and that she was 

addicted to meth in 2008 when she first met victim. (Vol. II, JT 369). 

Janet Morton stated that victim snorted crank only one time. (Vol. II, JT 367). 

Despite the victim having been cited or arrested for possession on two separate 

occasions, Janet Morton testified that Michael Surbaugh "may have" smoked pot three 

times (Vol. II, JT 365), and that he did not"abuse cannabis" around her. (Vol. II, 

JT 387). [Note: Crank is the street name for meth. Also, other evidence suggests that 

victim would "finish Janet Morton's lines" to help her with her addiction problem. (Vol. 

II, JT 769)] 

2. The "Up Williams" Citation. On March 8, 2009, the victim, Michael Surbaugh, 

was a passenger in Janet Morton's car on Rock House Road up Williams River, an area 

within the Monongahela National Forest. (Vol. I, AR 88 and, Vol. II, JT 364). When 

Janet Morton and Michael Surbaugh arrived at Michael Surbaugh's car; National 
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Forrest Service Officers were waiting. A search was conducted on victim's car and he 

was cited for possession of marijuana, drug paraphernalia, and a pipe. (Vol. I, AR 88 

and, Vol. II, JT 379). Victim pleaded guilty to the citation. (Vol. I, AR 88 and, Vol. II, 

JT 751). 

3. "When the Dogs Came to School" arrest". On May 22, 2009, victim was found in 

possession of 10 grams of marijuana and a loaded gun on school property after the 

police brought drug dogs to Webster County High School for a surprise sweep. (Vol. I, 

AR 88). A dog "hit" on Michael Surbaugh's vehicle located in the parking area of the 

school property. (Vol. I, AR 88). Victim was arrested for second offense possession of a 

controlled substance, placed on bond pending trial on September 16, 2009. (Vol. I, 

AR 88). Police also found a loaded gun in the vehicle but victim was not charged. (Vol. 

I, AR 88). 

4. Victim's Problems 'with Neighbors and Friends. Neighbor Ann Wilson testified 

that things "went into a tailspin" in the Surbaugh marriage in the year before August 6, 

2009. (Vol. II, JT 267 to 268). She noted the victim during this time having mood swings 

from one moment to the next (Vol. II, JT 267); that his language degenerated ("verbal 

cussing"). She stated: " [Y]ou never knew from one moment to the next what kind of 

mood he was in." He had a temper and used foul language with his sons. (Vol. II, JT 

268). Ms. Wilson further described victim's temper as "terrible" and that he verbally 

abused Appellant, Julie Surbaugh. (Vol. II, JT 265). She also described his temper as 

"explosive." (Vol. II, JT 265). 
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a. The Big Hug Incident. Ann Wilson and Gary Weir both describe a strange 

incident involving victim. Victim and long- time friend Weir had gone boating down 

the Elk River near Webster Springs. (Vol. II, JT 727). Victim had been drinking. Weir 

observed victim's demeanor to ascertain if victim were fit to drive. (Vol. II, JT 727). 

Weir decided that victim appeared to be "fine." (Vol. II, JT 728). During the one-half 

hour journey back to Webster Springs, victim's driving deteriorated and he had 

difficulty keeping his vehicle on the road. (Vol. II, JT 727). His speech was slurred. 

(Vol. II, JT 728). When Weir and victim arrived at victim's residence, victim staggered 

to the Wilson residence. (Vol. II, JT 728). Ann Wilson described his eyes as glassy, 

different. (Vol. II, JT 267). Victim gave Ann Wilson and her husband a big hug and 

thanked them for being so good to his sons. (Vol. II, JT 267). He was, "sobbing 

uncontrollably." (Vol. II, JT 267). 

b. The Card Game Breakup Incident. Friend Gary Weir also described victim's 

unusual behavior at a poker game with friends. (Vol. II, JT 725). While the poker game 

was in progress, there was a news report on the television of a drug bust in Webster 

County. Michael Surbaugh became upset and said it was wrong to arrest these people 

and that they were only hurting themselves. (Vol. II, JT 725). Some of the other players 

disagreed commenting that children were not safe and users turned to crime. (Vol. II, 

JT 726). Weir testified that it was not uncommon to have give and take discussions but 

that victim became so angry and negative that the card game soon broke up. (Vol. II, 

JT 726). Weir cited the "big hug" and "poker game breakup" as two examples of 
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victim's personality changes that had occurred in the year preceding his death. 

Neighbor Deb White was so concerned about the dramatic changes in the 

victim's personality over the course of the year (Vol. II, JT 243) that she took it upon 

herself to contact Women's Aid in Crises to ascertain services available to Appellant. 

(VoL II, JT 246). This was based upon domestic abuse she had seen at the Surbaugh 

residence in the weeks prior to the shooting. (VoL II, JT 246). Deb White noted that

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