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

ARGUMENT 

1. THE LOWER COURT DID NOT ERR IN ADMITTING STATEMENTS OF THE VICTIM 
DURING THE TRIAL OF THIS MATTER. 

Appellant argues that the lower court erred in admitting the statements ofthe victim and 

divides the statements into two separate categories. First, the appellant asserts that the recorded 

statement of the victim which was taken by Deputy Vandevender at the emergency room of 

Webster County Hospital is a testimonial statement and should have been prohibited under the 

standards set forth in Cral1!ford v. Washington, 541 U.S. 36, 124 S.Ct. 1354 (2000). Second, 

Appellant asserts that the remaining oral statements made by the victim should not have been 

admitted under the hearsay exceptions set forth in the West Virginia Rules ofEvidence. 

The recent United States Supreme Court case Michigan v. Bryant, 131 S. Ct. 1143 

(2011), clarified the Court's holdings in Cral1!ford. In Bryant the Court considered the 

admissibility of statements made to responding police officers by a gunshot victim prior to his 

death. In ruling the statements admissible and upholding the conviction, the Court set forth an 

objective analysis to consider the primary purpose of the questions and answers in determining the 

testimonial nature of the statements. The Court reviewed various factors including the 
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circumstances in which the statements were taken, the existence ofan ongoing emergency, the 

type ofweapon involved, the victim's medical condition and the statements and actions ofboth 

the officers and the victim in the questioning and answering. 

In addressing the issue the Court reiterated the rulings in Davis v. Washington, 547 U. S. 

813 (2006) and Hammon v. Indiana, 547 U.S. 813 (2006) and stated: 

"Statements are nontestimonial when made in the course ofpolice interrogation 
under circumstances objectively indicating that the primary purpose ofthe 
interrogation is to enable police assistance to meet an ongoing emergency. They 
are testimonial when the circumstances objectively indicate that there is no such 
ongoing emergency, and that the primary purpose ofthe interrogation is to 
establish or prove past events potentially relevant to later criminal prosecution." 
Davis, 547 U. S., at 822. 

The Bryant Court further stated: 

(1) The primary purpose inquiry is objective. The circumstances in which an 
encounter occurs-e.g., at or near a crime scene versus at a police station, during 
an ongoing emergency or afterwards-are clearly matters ofobjective fact. And 
the relevant inquiry into the parties' statements and actions is not the subjective or 
actual purpose ofthe particular parties, but the purpose that reasonable 
participants would have had, as ascertained from the parties' statements and 
actions and the circumstances in which the encounter occurred. 

(2) The existence ofan "ongoing emergency" at the time ofthe encounter is 
among the most important circumstances informing the interrogation's ''primary 
purpose." See, e.g., Davis, 547 U. S., at 828 - 830. An emergency focuses the 
participants not on ''prov[ing] past events potentially relevant to later criminal 
prosecution," id., at 822, but on "end[ing] a threatening situation," id., at 832. The 
Michigan Supreme Court failed to appreciate that whether an emergency exists 
and is ongoing is a highly context-dependent inquiry. An assessment ofwhether an 
emergency threatening the police and public is ongoing cannot narrowly focus on 
whether the threat to the first victim has been neutralized because the threat to the 
first responders and public may continue. 

The Bryant Court noted that the logic ofits analysis was "not unlike that justifying the 

excited utterance exception in hearsay law. Statements "relating to a startling event or condition 

made while the declarant was under the stress ofexcitement caused by the event or condition." In 

short, the determination ofthe admissibility ofthe deceased victim's statement is an objective 
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analysis based upon the facts of the case. The facts in this case are much like the facts in the 

Bryant case. 

The responding officers in this case were told by dispatchers that Michael Surbaugh was 

trying to shoot himself and that the location ofthe gun was unknown. Upon arriving at the scene, 

officers discovered Mr. Surbaugh bleeding from gunshot wounds to the head. Officers received 

conflicting stories from Mr. Surbaugh and the appellant as to the facts of what happened and were 

also unable to locate the gun prior to the time that Mr. Surbaugh gave each ofhis verbal 

statements and the recorded statement. The officers also knew that the Surbaughs had two young 

children residing in the home. 

Although Michael Surbaugh made several statements, they were made in a short period of 

time after emergency personnel arrived at the scene and took him to the hospital for treatment. 

He was suffering from serious injuries, i.e. three gunshot wounds to the head. (Trial Transcript 

Page 296, Line 14) In listening to the recording of the statements made by Mr. Surbaugh at the 

emergency room it is perfectly obvious that the statement was not a formal interrogation, but 

rather a hurried questioning lasting approximately one minute and ten seconds while Mr. 

Surbaugh is being prepared for transport to HealthNet. Deputy Vandevender asked Mr. 

Surbaugh what happened, who he thought did it and the location of the gun. In fact, at the end of 

the statement, medical personnel can be overheard asking the deputy "Can you tum it off?" and 

the emergency room being notified by the hospital operator of an incoming call from the 

helicopter, "ER, Healthnet 101." (Vol I, AR 153) 

Likewise, the verbal statements of the victim were taken in a hurried manner by officers, 

emergency services responders and medical personnel. For example, in attempting to provide 

treatment to the victim, Dan Moran, the first paramedic on scene, questioned Mr. Surbaugh about 
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the nature and cause ofhis injuries. During this questioning the victim told Mr. Moran that he did 

not shoot himself and that appellant had shot him. (Trial Transcript Page 297, Line 2 - 18) 

Therefore, the circumstances in which the statements were taken were in non-formal 

settings under hurried and emergent circumstances. Since the location of the firearm was 

unknown and there was the possibility that the appellant was the gunman and that she had 

continued access to the weapon, danger to the responding officers and emergency services 

personnel continued to exist. Further, a danger to the public continued to exist, not the least of 

which was the possibility that, ifthe gun was not located, the Surbaughs' young children or other 

children in the neighborhood may find and have access to it. 

In addition, the victim's statements are admissible under both the excited utterance 

exception in Rule 803(2) and general hearsay exceptions ofRule 804(b)(5) ofthe West Virginia 

Rules ofEvidence. From the third 9-1-1 call where Mr. Surbaugh can be overheard saying "The 

gun didn't go offJulie" (Vol I, AR 49) to the final recorded statement he made to Deputy 

Vandevender, the victim consistently maintained that he did not shoot himself In many ofthe 

statements he maintained that appellant shot him. The veracity of these statements was later 

confirmed by appellant in her third recorded statement to the officers. Further, the statements 

were all made near in time to the victim being shot in the head and, based upon all of the 

testimony ofresponding officers, paramedics and medical personnel he was still laboring under the 

stress ofthe events. Therefore, he did not have time to contrive answers in an effort to 

illegitimately incriminate the appellant for the purpose ofhaving her prosecuted. 

This proposition is further supported by the victim's answers to Deputy Vandevender 

during the recorded statement. Deputy Vandevender asked, "Who do you think done it?" and the 

victim responded, "I don't know." Later, after the victim told Deputy Vandevender that he had 
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taken a gun away from the Appellant, Deputy Vandevender asked, "So you think Julia done 

this?", to which Mr. Surbaugh responded, "I don't know." If Mr. Surbaugh were lying in an 

effort to falsely incriminate the appellant this was the perfect opportunity for him to do so. 

In appellant's brief counsel argues that the victim's statements are unreliable and should 

not have been admitted in light ofuncontested blood spatter evidence rendered by Dr. Daniel 

Spitz. The jury heard that evidence. The jury also heard the cross-examination ofDr. Spitz 

regarding investigative procedures and conclusions reached in the book which he helped co

author versus the inconsistent factual conclusions which he was highly paid to reach in this case. 

Based upon the verdict, the jury clearly resolved these inconsistencies in favor of the State and 

this Court should not invade the providence ofthe jury in resolving this factual issue. 

Based upon all of the relevant facts in this case, the statements of Mr. Surbaugh were not 

testimonial in nature and were properly admitted at trial pursuant to the standards set forth in 

Crmiford and Bryant. Further, the Court did not err in determining that the statements were also 

admissible under the cited hearsay exceptions. 

II. THE LOWER COURT DID NOT ERR IN ADMITTING THE PORTION OF THE "THIRD 
STATEMENT" OF APPELLANT. 

Appellant argues that the lower Court erred in admitting the final portion ofappellant's 

third recorded statement to officers, which was taken after Trooper Jordan entered the room with 

an arrest warrant for the appellant. State v. Persinger, 286 S.E.2d 261, 169 W.Va. 121 (1982) 

citing Edwards v. Arizona, 101 S.Ct. 1880, 1883-84,68 L.Ed.2d 378, 385 (1981) sets forth a 

totality ofthe circumstances test, including various factors to be considered by the Court in 

determining the vo1untariness and admissibility of the confession. Persinger states: 

The interior quoted language from Edwards is often referred to as the totality of 
the circumstances surrounding the confession. Thus the voluntariness of a 
confession is an inquiry that must be gauged by the totality ofthe circumstances 
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WIder which it was given including the backgroWId, experience and conduct ofthe 
accused. See Fare v. Michael c., 442 U.S. 707, 99 S.Ct. 2560, 61 L.Ed.2d 197 
(1979); Clewis v. Texas, 386 U.S. 707, 87 S.Ct. 1338, 18 L.Ed.2d 423 (1967); 
Fikes v. Alabama, 352 U.S. 191, 77 S.Ct. 281, 1 L.Ed.2d 246 (1957) 

State v. Bradshaw, 193 W.Va. 519,457 S.E.2d 456 (1995) this Court stated, "In 

examining the totality ofthe circumstances, a court must consider a myriad offactors, including 

the defendant's age, intelligence, background and experience with the criminal justice system, the 

purpose and flagrancy ofany police misconduct, and the length ofthe interview." 

This Court further set forth the standard of review ofthe trial court's decision in syllabus 

point two ofState v. Johnson, 219 W.Va. 697,639 S.E.2d 789 (2006) which states: 

When reviewing a ruling on a motion to suppress, an appellate court should 
construe all facts in the light most favorable to the State, as it was the prevailing 
party below. Because ofthe highly fact-specific nature of a motion to suppress, 
partiCUlar deference is given to the findings of the circuit court because it had the 
opportWlity to observe the witnesses and to hear testimony on the issues. 
Therefore, the circuit court's factual findings are reviewed for clear error." Syl. 
Pt. 1, State v. Lacy, 196 W.Va. 104,468 S.E.2d 719 (1996). 

Appellant further argues that her sixth amendment right to counsel attached when Trooper 

Jordan walked into the Sheriffs Department with an arrest warrant for her. Counsel urges that 

the Trooper should have stopped the deputies from continuing to take a statement and advised the 

defendant ofher sixth amendment right to counsel. 

In State v. Barrow, 359 S.E.2d 844,178 W.Va. 406(1987), syllabus points 1 and 2, this 

Court stated: 

1. Ifpolice initiate interrogation after a defendant's assertion, at an 
arraignment or similar proceeding, ofhis right to counsel, any waiver of the 
defendant's right to counsel for that police-initiated interrogation is invalid because 
it was taken in violation ofthe defendant's Sixth Amendment right to counsel. 

2. "An adversary judicial criminal proceeding is instituted against a 
defendant where the defendant after his arrest is taken before a magistrate pursuant 
to W.Va.Code, 62-1-5 [1965], and is, inter alia, informed pursuant to W.Va. 
Code, 62-1-6 [1965], ofthe complaint against him and ofhis right to counseL" 
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Syllabus Point 1, in part, State v. Gravely, 171 W.Va. 428,299 S.E.2d 375 
(1982). 

In Johnson, 291 W. Va. 697, 703 this Court considered the admissibility of the confession 

ofdefendant after he had been arrested upon a warrant issued upon a criminal complaint. The 

Court stated: 

West Virginia Code § 62-1-5(a)(1) directs that n[a]n officer making an 
arrest under a warrant issued upon a complaint, or any person making an arrest 
without a warrant for an offense committed in his presence or as otherwise 
authorized by law, shall take the arrested person without unnecessary delay before 
a magistrate of the county where the arrest is made." Rule 5(a) ofthe West 
Virginia Rules of Criminal Procedure reiterates this principle. Johnson was 
arrested at approximately 5:20 p.m. on June 26 and was presented before a 
magistrate at some time before 8:00 p.rn. that same evening. The "delay," then, 
was no more than two hours and forty minutes. It should also be noted that 
between 5:20 p.rn. and 6:41 p.m., the police were questioning Johnson's 
accomplice, Allen Myers. 

We have held that "[w]hen a statement is obtained from an accused in 
violation of the prompt presentment rule, neither the statement nor matters learned 
directly from the statement may be introduced against the accused at trial." Syl. 
Pt. 1, State v. DeWeese, 213 W.Va. 339,582 S.E.2d 786 (2003). However, in 
DeWeese, we specifically found that the facts in that case clearly established that 
the defendant, who was held for fifteen hours before being presented to a 
magistrate, was not promptly taken before a magistrate because the police wanted 
to obtain a statement from him. In the instant case, Johnson has produced no 
evidence that the delay in his presentment was for the purpose ofobtaining a 
statement, and we can find no evidence of such a motive either. 

For the first hour and twenty-one minutes that he was held, the detectives were 
interviewing Johnson's accomplice. Johnson was then Mirandized and interviewed between 6:43 
p.m. and 7:00 p.m. There was no shake-down. Johnson was not harangued or otherwise coerced 
into making a statement. He was read his rights and then allowed to speak in narrative with very 
little interruption or questioning from the detective. Moreover, the statement that Johnson gave 
to police was in no way a confession. To the contrary, Johnson maintained his innocence 
throughout the interview. He did repeatedly refer to his "jacket," a slang term for criminal record, 
but that did not in any way incriminate him in the Marathon robbery. '" "The delay in taking a 
defendant to a magistrate may be a critical factor [in the totality of circumstances making a 
confession involuntary and hence inadmissable] where it appears that the prirnarypurpose of the 
delay was to obtain a confession from the defendant." Syllabus Point 6, State v. Persinger, 169 
W.Va. 121,286 S.E.2d 261 (1982), as amended.' Syllabus Point 1, State v. Guthrie, 173 W.Va 
290,315 S.E.2d 397 (1984)." Syl. Pt. 8, State v. Milburn, 204 W.Va. 203,511 S.E.2d 828 
(1998). Such was not the case here, so, showing deference to the trial court, we find no error in 
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the court's admission of Johnson's statement to police. 

The facts and circumstances leading up to the obtaining of the arrest warrant and the 

appellant's confession during her third statement are undisputed. Prior to August 12,2009, the 

appellant had given various oral statements and two recorded statements to investigators. Prior 

to the second recorded statement given by the appellant on the evening ofAugust 11, 2009, she 

was read her Miranda rights and waived the same. Also, during that statement she told the 

deputy, "My lawyer would prob... , well my lawyer has not been retained yet, but he would 

probably be hanging me by my toenails ifhe knew I was just telling you guys the truth." 

On the morning ofAugust 12, 2009 investigators met at the Prosecutor's office to discuss 

the preliminary findings of the medical examiner. Officers were discussing obtaining a search 

warrant for the Surbaugh residence in an effort to find a missing third bullet. It was detennined 

that Deputy Clayton was going to apply for a search warrant and Trooper Jordan was going to 

coordinate the use of the State Police Crime Scene team in executing the warrant. During the 

meetings discussions turned to the possibility of the arrest ofthe appellant. However, those 

discussions were immediately interrupted by a telephone call from the Sheriffs office to advise the 

deputies that the Appellant had unexpectedly appeared at the Sheriffs office asking to speak with 

them. 

Deputy Clayton and Deputy Vandevender left Trooper Jordan at the Prosecutor's office

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